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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A bill relating to the student information system. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Att. #1 - Duane Schell; Att. #2, #3 – Jeff Fastnacht 

 
Chairman Schaible: Called the committee to order. Roll call was taken. All members present. 
We’ll open our hearing on SB 2101.  
 
Duane Schell, Chief Technology Officer at the ITD: See Attachment # 1 
 
Chairman Schaible: Would this lead to the termination of PowerSchool? 
 
Duane Schell: That is certainly not our intent. Our intent is purely to clean up the language, 
we support the product, the program and we will pursue whatever strategy the K12 
community wants to pursue.  
 
Chairman Schaible: What about the funding aspect? Isn’t it in the Department of Public 
Instruction budget? 
 
Duane Schell: At one time it was, the current funding strategy, the way the governor’s budget 
as proposed, that funding is embedded within ITD’s budget bill. 
 
Senator Davison: Mr. Chairman and Duane, is section 2 necessary anymore? As I read it, 
everybody’s required to use the state student information system and it still requires the BIA 
schools to use a student information system. The superintendent isn’t determining if the 
student information system is comparible or to what level it is at in section 1 but in section 2 
we are trying to say that – I’m not sure what the purpose of section 2 is. Could you help me 
with that? 
 
Duane Schell: Mr. Chairman, Senator Davison, I do believe we have some BIA schools that 
are participating. It is my understanding that some of the BIA schools are using a system that 
is being required through the BIA.  
 
Senator Davison: But it is still a student information system? 
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Duane Schell: Correct. 
 
Senator Davison: Maybe I am missing something, but I don’t see the relevance of section 
2.  
 
Chairman Schaible: Senator Elkin 
 
Senator Elkin: I was going to question the BIA, that’s where Senator Davison has gone with 
this. I just wanted some clarity of why this has to be in there on its own.  
 
Duane Schell: Mr. Chairman, Senator Elkin, I’m not sure I am the best one to comment on 
the BIA requirements. I do understand there are some requirements from the BIA, but I am 
not an expert on those areas.  
 
Chairman Schaible: Other questions? Seeing none, thank you. Other testimony in favor of. 
 
Jeff Fastnacht: See Attachment # 2, Attachment # 3 
 
Chairman Schaible: Any questions of Mr. Fastnacht? 
 
Senator Davison: Mr. Chair and Jeff the amendment you have proposed; it states on 
number 4 it says the state shall fund the student information system through Department of 
Public Instruction budget. I believe that there is a factor in the formula currently for funding 
PowerSchool. 
 
Jeff Fastnacht: There was a formula in an earlier iteration, and then taken out and funded 
through Department of Public Instruction and ITD bills Department of Public Instruction.  
 
Senator Davison: So, my point is: let’s say school A stays with PowerSchool and 
PowerSchool is $100, but school B wants to spend $150 on whatever a comparable vendor 
is. So is it still the responsibility of the state to pay the higher price for the other vendor? You 
are thinking there will be an approved vendor list and we will fund whatever one the people 
want?  
 
Jeff Fastnacht: No.  
 
Senator Davison: Because we could write out a check to one vendor with PowerSchool, so 
I’m just trying to process the funding formula on how we would fund that if there is different 
costs to different schools. By putting a blanket statement that we are just going to pay for it, 
we are reall taking away if school A really doesn’t need the student information system that 
focuses more on customized learning or personalized learning that has a higher price tag, 
they are just doing it because it has some different bells and whistles that they may be 
interested in. Do you have thoughts on that issue? 
 
Jeff Fastnacht: Senator Davison and members of the committee, we support the initial 
change that was presented to you – there weren’t multiple student information systems, we 
are asking for a rewrite of the statute to say instead of saying we are supplying PowerSchool, 
here would be a student information system that would be selected for the state. So we are 
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still talking one student information system that is collective for all schools. You would not 
have the ability  - well, I guess anybody would have the ability to go rouge if they wanted to, 
but the statute kind of limits that, except for as we talked about in part 2, but the student 
information system would be a selected student information system for the state, it would just 
not be spelled out as PowerSchool and again, item 3 says if that would change in the future, 
here is the process for changing it, but it is the student information system – whatever we 
want to name it. Your funding of it is for the funding of the one and only singular information 
system. Whatever that may be in the future. That’s how I read it.  
 
Senator Davison: I guess Mr. Schnell has sat down. I guess I didn’t interpret it that way 
when I read the original bill. So if schools are looking to do the more personalized/customized 
learning, there is software out there that addresses some of the grading systems and the 
competency things. Other schools may be more traditional and when I read originally, I was 
thinking schools would have the option to go a different direction if they wanted to, but you 
are still thinking it is going to select one system after looking at several vendor’s products.  
 
Jeff Fastnacht: Chairman Schaible and members of the committee, yes. 
 
Senator Davison: I don’t interpret that in this change here.  
 
Jeff Fastnacht: That was the intent of ETC and was the driving force of the draft.  
 
Chairman Schaible: So right now it is PowerSchool. To take this name out, does that need 
to be determined by someone and who would make that? 
 
Jeff Fastnacht: Chairman Schaible we hope that item number 3 addresses that the SLDS 
committee would be the driving force of that and if there was ever a change from the 
stakeholders – and I know this is a philosophical debate – I know that ITD is a big thing – ITD 
is our service provider for K12. They are a platform that is hosting our software. SDLS seems 
the logical place to start any any change if we would see so fit. If not, we will just continue as 
is, but if we want to change it, that would be the driving catalyst for our change. 
 
Chairman Schaible: Would it make sense to make to include that language? 
 
Jeff Fastnacht: I hope that is what it says in item 3. The Statewide Longitudinal Board would 
the catalyst for any change. If not, again, we are just adding a starting point for the committee.  
 
Chairman Schaible: Other questions?  
 
Senator Oban: Chairman Schaible and Jeff, can you help me understand why in your 
proposed subsection 3 you guys feel it is necessary to name specific members of the ETC? 
 
Jeff Fastnacht: Senator Oban and members of the committee the statewide longitudinal 
data system board is not the ETC. But with minimal representation the board is comprised of 
representation from Department of Public Instruction, Career and Tech Ed., NDCEL and 
NDATL is on there. So it is very representative of the ETC Board.  
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Senator Oban: So why name specific representatives that have to approve of this rather 
than the SLED board? 
Jeff Fastnacht: Senator Oban and members of the committee, the SLED board is pretty 
small. You look at that and when we meet, that is probably a quorm of 5-6 people and is very 
technology rich, so we felt it should almost be a subcommittee fo SLDS. SLDS can start it, 
but, they will need to get viewpoints from other stakeholder input from a wider group. NDCEL 
would represent elementary and secondary principals, tech leaders of NDATL and 
superintendents. SLDS board is very tech heavy. 
 
Senator Oban: I am looking at the committee membership in NDCC and it looks like there 
are supposed to be 11 members? 
 
Jeff Fastnacht: Yes, there are supposed to be.  
 
Senator Oban: If you need to attain a quorum, you may want to discuss that, but, I just think 
it is a little bit redundant to name certain members of the committee who should have a say 
if you have a committee. Just a question axs to why there was a preference. 
 
Jeff Fastnacht: Senator Oban and members of the committee in all due respect if you want 
to say it is SLDS we are ok with that. We just wanted to start there because without it, it is 
left in the lap of IDT and they are the provider, not the consumer.  
 
Chairman Schaible: Other questions. Other testimony in favor of? For your knowledge, we 
don’t take neutral testimony, we only take testimony in favor or against a bill. We do offer 
agency testimony.  
 
Lisa Feldner: Good morning Mr. Chairman and members of the committee. My name is Lisa 
Feldner (#142) and I am here representing NDCEL. I was asked to give a history of the 
implementation of PowerSchool in the state. Earlier, I served as the tech director of Bismarck 
Public Schools.  Several of the larger districts were running on the AS400 platforms and 
when the computer revolution came along, student information products like PowerSchool 
came out. In 1998, we were looking to replace our mainframe based student information 
systems in Bismarck. So was Beulah and Grand Forks. We collaborated and started to look 
for a new system which happened to be athe same time the state was looking to do 
PeopleSoft. So and RFP was put out with the state – Curt Wolf was the CIO at the time ran 
the RFP for us. ITD did a great job. We procured PowerSchool and ITD negotiated a 
phenomenal licensing rate for us at the time. We were able to come on the first two years at 
no charge. But, that came at a cost – it was extremely painful for the districts involved. It was 
very painful to implement a new student information system. It was one of the worst 
experiences of my life and I would never want to do it again. Bismarck implemented it and 
Beulah and Grand Forks came on board as well. Pretty soon, several districts from around 
the state came on board voluntarily as well. You only had to pay a couple of bucks a student 
to be on PowerSchool and ITD hosted it. In 2007, I was the CIO, and we were able to get 
some legislation passed to start planning for a statewide longitudinal data system, the SLDS. 
We had had several failed attempts, both at the state – a product called Tetradata – a product 
the Department of Public Instruction forced down our throats that didn’t work and then 
districts did another RFP and came up with another product call Viewpoint that some still use 
today. But at any rate, we were still looking for something that could be used statewide. In 
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the plan, we were given a small amount of money to hire a consultant to put together a plan 
for a statewide longitudinal data system to be able to track the successes and failures of 
things that were policy or funding related. The number one recommendation was that the 
state needed a uniform student information system at all K12 districts to collect the data 
seamlessly. In 2009, the first year the PowerSchool language was put into code. It said, 
notwithstanding any other technology systems imposed by the Superintendent of Department 
of Public Instruction, ITD, the NDETC and each school district shall acquire PowerSchool 
through the ITD and use it as it’s student information system. Additionally, the funding 
factoring was put in - .002 of the funding formula times the number of students to pay for the 
program. EduTech was give $300,000 to help schools implement the product. That same 
year in 2009, we received a $2.2 million grant for the SLDS. As part of the 2.9 million, we 
had to have some way to collect that data. In 2011, PowerSchool was funded more directly 
through Department of Public Instruction and the department was to pay ITD for hosting the 
product. ITD is the service provider and host the product they don’t own it – K12 owns it and 
they would pay ITD. Part of the reason the funding was done that way was so one of the 
Senators at the time said, “We as legislators need to track how much money is going to K12. 
The only way to track that is to put it in the K12 budget. If it is put in ITD’s budget, we are not 
getting credit for funding education. You are giving credit for funding technology.” That is why 
it ended up where it ended up. Hopefully, that will answer Senator Davison’s question. The 
reason the language was put in about the BIA, was because the BIA says they have a 
federally funded and mandated student information system that they must use. It was 
decided BIS schools wouldn’t need to use PowerSchool because of the federal mandate to 
use their system.  
 
Senator Davison: What if we took the BIA out of there and let any school district that 
collecting the same data and we are in 2019 and that is not a difficult thing among data bases 
to transfer data because aren’t some schools going to have a different need than other 
schools as we long term transition into how we may – the framework at which schools operate 
and how they grade and the different things they are doing and might want to track inside 
their school system?  
 
Lisa Feldner: Senator Davison and members of the committee, in theory yes, but now you 
have all those hooks build into the SLDS and all that reporting from PowerSchool into the 
SLDS and yes, theoretically, with technology you can move those, but you have all that 
support from ITD that support PowerSchool. The question is, “How are you going to divide 
that up?” Does x school district that wants to choose something other than PowerSchool, 
and go on my own then does that mean that they won’t get state funding and won’t get 
support from EduTech? 
 
Senator Davison: Mr. Chairman, I am just asking questions. I am looking forward to the 
questions as we meet only every two years. Where will schools be in two years – not where 
they are now. PowerSchool doesn’t have a corner on the fields to collect student data 
information and SLDS and the hooks are just a push of the button because those fields are 
going to talk.  We are past the 1990s where data bases didn’t have bridges to talk. If there is 
a need out there as some schools are moving to different grading systems, and measuring 
different behavioral activities in their schools and doing different things…if PowerSchool 
doesn’t keep up with that, we shouldn’t be restricted based on that. We should have an out 



Senate Education Committee  
SB 2101 
1/7/2019 
Page 6  
   

for it. And it doesn’t mean it should be easy, it just means there should be something in code 
and it is my belief that there is an out for it if necessary. That was my thought. 
Chairman Schaible: That was a question? You are right the it is not quite as simple as 
technology as you think. There are other things to consider. Lisa did you have any other 
history for us? 
Lisa Feldner: The only other thing I would say is that ITD has always negotiated those long 
term contacts – usually five year, with the ability to add a couple more years. That is a good 
thing as it allows for long term planning when you are on something for that amount of time. 
They need to be given credit for negotiating very good contracts. I’m here to provide history 
because this isn’t anything to be taken lightly when you want to transition to a different 
process. It is a very long process.  
 
Chairman Schaible: And we have spent a lot of money on SLDS and PowerSchool. Thank 
you. Other questions? Any testimony in favor of the bill? Any testimony in opposition the SB 
2101? Seeing no other testimony, we’ll close the hearing. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A bill relating to the student information system. 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Schaible: We will look at SB 2101. Senator Davison. 
 
Senator Davison: If you will remember, this is the bill that removes the vendor name 
“PowerSchool” and puts in the state student information system. The purpose of the bill to 
remove the vendor name and everybody to move forward with the same state system.  I do 
believe it is important to be on the same state system. The challenge I had with the bill is that 
it doesn’t provide for any flexibility for us to explore other opportunities or pilot projects that 
other schools might have as education innovation bill and some of the things school districts 
are doing with different way of grading and scheduling change and some different types of 
needs that they may have that PowerSchool or any system may not meet. It doesn’t allow us 
the opportunity for them to come forward and say to a specific group that in my amendment 
it would be the statewide longitudinal date system committee. The statewide longitudinal data 
system committee would need to set a bar or a process for what level that would need to 
reach in order for them to do that. It would need to have the same “hooks”, the same 
information that we are currently collecting with the current vendor. If that committee felt that 
they had reached that bar that was high enough to try that pilot project and it was something 
that another vendor didn’t do that that committee could make that decision to allow them to 
do it. That is what the amendment does. In the bill, page 1, line 15, it adds in the overstrike 
to the superintendent of Public Instruction may exempt a school district from having to 
implement and utilize and it puts that into the statewide longitudinal data system committee. 
On line 117, I left in the BIA language, but added in the district would need to acquire a 
student information system that would be comparable to the current state longitudinal data 
system committee. That is the intention.  
 
Chairman Schaible:  Should it read state longitudinal board rather than committee? 
 
Senator Davison: I thought that same thing. I did look it up in the NDCC 59-59-33 it does 
refer to it as the statewide longitudinal committee.  
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Chairman Schaible: I had assumed it was a board.  
 
Senator Davison: Part of what I looked at is are these the right people on here? We don’t 
need to act on this right now, we could continue to discuss that part of the issue.  
Chairman Schaible: Senator Rust.  
 
Senator Rust: Mr. Chairman and Senator Davison the NDCEL in testimony suggested 
amendments to SB 2101. I am wondering if that takes care of those items. I don’t see number 
four being taken care of.  
 
Senator Davison: Asst. Superintendent Fastknacht referred to the committee as a board 
and I think that is where the confusion arose. I do believe it takes care of number three.  
 
Senator Rust: Number four says the state shall fund the system through the Department of 
Public Instruction budget. That was one of their suggestions. 
 
Senator Davison: In visiting one of the schools that might like to look at another system in 
the future, they would fund that system if the system was changed. I don’t think we should 
put it in there at this time. That school or group of schools should request it at that future 
time. We don’t fund it if it is something different.  
 
Chairman Schaible: Part of that discussion, if the funding was moved to ITD, the concern 
was that ITD could defund SLEDS if budget concerns arose. My concern if we have on 
statewide data system, we should have the best one we could have. That is what the state 
should fund. If we had schools that would like another option, the burden of payment would 
be on their back, but also the burden would be on their systems to be comparable with our 
system. 
 
Chairman Schaible: I would suggest that the amendment include the funding through 
Department of Public Instruction.  
 
Senator Marcellais: I would like to explain to the members on the committee, the reason 
they are in the bill is because the elementary school is funded by the federal government and 
the high school is funded through the state.  
 
Chairman Schaible: Other discussion, comments. Kyle will continue to work on the 
amendment and we will get a “Christmas tree” version later. The committee will be in recess 
until 2:00 PM. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A bill relating to the student information system. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Att. #1-Schaible 

 
Chairman Schaible:  See Attachment #1. Introduced and explained an amendment to SB 
2101 (19.8067.01002).  
 
Vice-Chairman Fors: Move we adopt 19.8067.01002. 
 
Rust: Second. 
 
Chairman Schaible: Discussion. 
 
Senator Oban: The Superintendent of Public Instruction is still going to be the one that 
exempts a school district, but the SLEDS committee determines what system will be used. 
Correct? 
 
Chairman Schaible: We have one system right now – PowerSchool. We want to take 
PowerSchool out of there so the state has only one system – without a vendor name. The 
superintendent would have the authority to exempt a district from using a different system, 
but that district would need to pay for system and be sure that the data sets would still be 
usable by the state. The state has only one system and that is determined by SLEDS. 
 
Roll taken: 7 yeas; 0 nays; 0 absent. 
 
Motion Carried. 
 
Rust: We have another amendment. 19.8067.01001. Did we do anything with that? 
 
Senator Davison: That was the amendment I was going to add in when we added the 
amendment we just passed in. I thought they would be combined. I threw my copies away 
and I do like text in this amendment. The amendment I was going to propose allowed a school 
district to pilot another system determined to be comparable by SLEDS committee. The intent 
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is if three schools want to pilot a system, there is an opportunity for the SLEDS committee to 
determine in that is a reasonable thing to do. That is what that amendment was for. The 
amendment should complement this amendment. If we could hold this until this afternoon, I 
will grab that and bring it to the afternoon session.  
 
Chairman Schaible: We’ll stand at ease until 9:30. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
A bill relating to the student information system 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1, 2, 3 

 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Opened the hearing on SB 2101. 
 
Rosie Kloberdanz, Director, ND Education Technology Council & Director, EduTech 
within Information Technology Department: (Attachment 1) 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: Any questions from the committee?  Others in 
support?   
 
Robert Baumann, Team Manager, North Dakota EduTech Power School: (Attachment 
2) In showing you the model of the student data solution for the state of North Dakota you 
would understand the importance of keeping a consistent student information system in all 
districts across the state.  Power School would serve as the foundation for that system in that 
every night data from the student information system is pulled through the statewide 
longitudinal data system through a process called the SLDS ETL (extract, transform, load).  
It is a very complicated process and took a large amount of resources to development so 
that this system works for the state of North Dakota.  Once data is in the SLDS, what it 
provides to other systems in the state is unparalleled in the country.  When we speak to other 
states about what we have in place, they marvel at how far advanced we are in using student 
data.  The benefits it provides to school districts, the SLDS application itself in helping school 
districts make informed decisions on data rather than by the seat of the pants is incredible. 
 
The other applications, the eTranscript system, in the state of North Dakota, is unrivalled in 
this country.  The ability for students and parents to access the eTranscipts and know where 
their students are at in meeting the requirements for either the state academic or the CTE 
scholarship again is unparalleled.  That arrow that moves data from Power School up to the 
SLDS (on the attachment) - if we allow districts to make their own choice as to what student 
information system they want to use, that breaks and everything above it breaks.  That would 
be a terrible disservice to the students of the state of North Dakota. 
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Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Any further questions?  Essentially, everything is 
intact right now?  We really don’t want to change anything other than some wording? 
 
Robert Baumann:  Yes.  As Ms. Kloberdanz mentioned, Power School started out as an 
application, a product.  In the process of a business transaction, it now is a vendor, owned 
by Vista Equity Partners.  It makes sense that you don’t want a vendor name in legislation 
because eventually Vista Equity is going to reach that point where Power School LLC 
becomes a profitable sale and they will do that.  Very likely, someone might change its name.  
Moving toward that point when districts would have the ability to make a decision, current 
technical standards are moving in that direction and when they get there, ITD and the SLDS 
would be happy to help those districts with their student information systems.  For right now, 
it’s imperative we stay with a consistent system across the state. 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: Any further questions? Others in support? 
 
Aimee Copas, NDCEL: (Attachment 3) I am a member of the SLDS Committee. 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Any others in support?  Any in opposition?   Any 
neutral testimony?   Close hearing on SB 2101. 
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